
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
981 H Street, Suite 100, Crescent City, CA 95531 

February 22, 2016 4:00 pm 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

A. Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair for 2016 
 

2. Public Hearing – Continued from January 25, 2016 

A. Crescent City Water Service Extension to the Martin Ranch (APN 115-
020-28) and Ocean Way Motel (APN 115-020-20) Properties 
(ATTACHMENT 2A) 

 
3. Regular Business 

A. Approval of January 25, 2016 Draft Minutes (ATTACHMENT 3A)  

B. Del Norte LAFCo Policy & Procedures Update (ATTACHMENT 3B) 

 
4. Inquiries, Correspondence, Application Status and Referrals 

A. Staff - The Executive Officer will provide a report of current projects, 
issues of interest, and pending legislation. 

 

C. Commission - On their own initiative, Commission members may make 
brief announcements or reports on their own activities. They may ask 
questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or request a business 
matter for a future agenda per Government Code Section 54954.2 
(a). 

 

D. Public - Public comment on items of interest within LAFCo subject 
matter jurisdiction, and not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  No 
action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. 

 

5. Adjournment 

Packet Page 1



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

 
AGENDA ITEM 2A 

MEETING DATE: February 22, 2016  

TO:   Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer  

SUBJECT: City of Crescent City Water Service Extension to the Martin Ranch 
(APN 115-020-28) and Ocean Way Motel (APN 115-020-20) 
Properties 

 
 
 
SUMMARY 

The Commission will consider an application from the City of Crescent City to extend water 
service to the Elk Valley Rancheria’s Martin Ranch (APN 115-020-28) and Ocean Way Motel 
(APN 115-020-20) properties. The subject parcels are located near the intersection of U.S. 
Highway 101 and Humboldt Road approximately one mile south of Crescent City, within the 
City’s existing sphere of influence (SOI) (Attachment 1). 
 
The Commission reviewed this application during a public hearing at the January 25, 2016 
meeting, the hearing was continued to this February 22, 2016 meeting. This staff report 
contains additions to the January 25 staff report including new correspondence, state law 
analysis, Commission adopted policy compliance, and environmental review update.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 

This item has been agenized for consideration as part of a continued public hearing. The 
following procedures are recommended with respect to the Commission’s consideration of 
this item: 

• Receive verbal report from staff 
• Open the public hearing and invite testimony. 
• Discuss item and continue or close the hearing and - if appropriate - consider action on 

recommendation. 
 
Staff has identified three options for Commission consideration with respect to the proposal:  

(1) Continue consideration of the item to the next regular meeting and provide 
direction to staff for additional information as needed.  

(2) Adopt the draft resolution identified as Attachment 3 approving the proposal with 
conditions along with any other changes requested by the Commission.  

(3) Disapprove the proposal. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel properties are held in trust by the United States of 
America for the benefit of the Elk Valley Rancheria (Tribe). The Tribe has long planned to 
develop a casino and resort on the Martin Ranch property and has no current development 

Packet Page 2



 
 

 

plans for the Ocean Way Motel property, which is currently vacant. On November 30, 2015 the 
LAFCo Commission approved a County Service Area (CSA) No. 1 SOI Amendment and sewer 
service extension to serve the subject properties. Both properties are located with the 
Crescent City SOI; Martin Ranch (APN 115-020-28) is also within the Bertsch-Ocean View CSD 
(BOVCSD) SOI, however the Ocean Way Motel property is not.  
 
In April 2015 the City approved a MOU with the Tribe to provide water to the Martin Ranch by 
wheeling water through the BOVCSD pipes. In 2011 the Coastal Commission approved an 
Amendment to the County’s Local Coastal Program (LCP) in order to allow public services (i.e. 
water and sewer) to the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel parcels as they are currently 
located outside of the urban services boundary (DNC-MAJ-1-10). The policy amendment was 
an exception to provide public services only to the two identified parcels with no additional 
laterals to be provided to adjoining or nearby parcels to prevent growth inducement outside 
of the designated urban boundary. 
 
Correspondence Received 

LAFCO staff received two letters in response to agency referrals distributed for the proposal. 
A December 30, 2015 letter from the Elk Valley Rancheria supports the City’s proposal. A 
January 19, 2016 letter from BOVCSD’s legal counsel requested that the proposal be 
continued to allow the BOVCSD Board time to respond and comment on the application. An 
additional letter dated January 25, 2016 was submitted by BOVCSD legal counsel including a 
list of questions for the Commission. LAFCo staff responded to this letter (Attachment 2).  
 

DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
Reasons for Proposal 

Since the City of Crescent City is the only water service provider with both the Martin Ranch 
and Ocean Way Motel properties in its SOI, the City wishes to provide water services to these 
properties. It has been the intention of the Tribe to connect to the public water system since 
the early stages of planning to re-locate the Elk Valley Casino to the Martin Ranch parcel. 
 
Water System Infrastructure 

The Martin Ranch is currently served through existing water infrastructure, located along Roy 
Avenue. The Ocean Way Motel has a well. Water pipes would need to be extended to the 
Ocean Way Motel along Humboldt Road or on the Tribe's Martin Ranch property in order to 
serve the Ocean Way Motel. The existing water system components consist of a 12-inch supply 
pipeline, a booster pump, one above ground steel reservoir, and a looped distribution system 
which consists mostly of 8-inch diameter pipe. 
 
It is anticipated that at full build out the water connection and pipe size would be in the 
range of 2-inch to 6-inch diameter and would be connected at an appropriate location along 
existing lines in Roy Avenue. If necessary, the booster pump located along Elk Valley Road 
may require an expansion (as disclosed in the 2008 Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)). 
The major on-site water supply system components would consist of 3-inch to 4-inch pipeline 
connection, an on-site reservoir (in ground or at grade) with the capacity of 500,000 to 
700,000 gallons, a booster pump for potable water and fire, electrical service to operate to 
on-site pump stations, and an emergency diesel generator for power outages. According to 
the Water Study attached to the EIS, it is not anticipated that significant system 
improvements would be necessary (EIS Appendix L).  
It is anticipated that the resort project will utilize 27 Single-Family-Equivalent (SFE) units. It 
is LAFCo staff’s understanding that the Tribe would receive water at a set flow rate and 

Packet Page 3



 
 

 

manage on-site water supply and distribution via the on-site reservoir and pump station(s). 
Estimated average daily water demand of 60,000 gallons per day and estimated peak flow (for 
a short duration – less than one hour) of 150 gallons per minute was used in the 2010 Negative 
Declaration adopted by the County for LCP Amendment approval authorizing the extension of 
water and sewer service infrastructure to the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel properties 
(DNC-MAJ-1-10). The City has documented that it has the capacity available to serve the 
proposed project and the service extension would not impact the City’s ability to provide 
water services to existing or future development within the its service area.  
 
Only off-site improvements related to the Tribe's development plan are under the County's 
purview, such as the extension of water lines to the property. The Tribe would pay applicable 
connection fees and regular monthly service fees and for any infrastructure upgrades 
necessary for extension to the Ocean Way Motel property. 
 
State Law 
Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) are responsible under the Cortese- Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 for regulating the formation and 
development of local governmental agencies and their municipal services. This includes 
approving or disapproving requests from cities and special districts to provide new or 
extended municipal services outside their jurisdictions under California Government Code 
(G.C.) Section 56133. LAFCOs are authorized to condition approval for outside service 
agreements as long as the terms do not directly regulate land uses. 
 
G.C. Section 56133 requires cities and special districts to request and receive written 
approval from LAFCO before entering into agreements to provide new or extended services 
outside their jurisdictional boundaries. The code specifies that LAFCOs may authorize a city 
provide new or expanded services within its’s sphere of influence in anticipation of a later 
change of organization.  
 
The City has applied to Del Norte LAFCo in compliance with G.C. 56133, both APN 115-020-28 
and APN 115-020-20 are within the City’s sphere of influence and the City has been requested 
to provide documentation that the proposal is in anticipation of a future change of 
organization.  
 
Commission Adopted Policy 
Following are the Commission adopted Policies and Procedures (last updated in 2004) related 
to provision of services by contract. 
 

Conditions of Approval:  LAFCO may approve a request for out-of-agency services if 
the affected territory is within the agency’s sphere of influence and is in anticipation 
of a later change of organization. 
 
Procedures:  Because LAFCO will only approve out-of-agency service agreements in 
anticipation of subsequent jurisdictional changes, applicants will be required to 
submit an annexation/detachment application, or other documentation demonstrating 
that the agreement is in anticipation of a subsequent jurisdictional change (e.g., 
irrevocable offer to annex). 
 

In accordance with Del Norte LAFCO’s adopted Policies and Procedures the City was requested 
to submit documentation demonstrating that the agreement is in anticipation of a future 
jurisdictional change.  
 

Packet Page 4



 
 

 

Environmental Review 
The proposed out of agency service approval implements a prior LCP Amendment authorizing 
the extension of services to the properties. The County prepared and adopted a Negative 
Declaration (SCH #2010032096) for the LCP text amendment to allow the extension of public 
water and sewer beyond the urban services boundary to serve the Tribe’s proposed casino and 
resort on the Martin Ranch property. A thorough consideration of the on-site and off-site 
environmental impacts related to the Tribe’s project was made in the Draft Environmental 
Impact Statement (EIS No. 20050396), the Final EIS (No. 20060394), and the federal 
government’s Record of Decision dated January 4, 2008. 
 
The prior staff report noted that no further environmental analysis would be required. 
However, it was brought to LAFCo’s attention that the Ocean Way motel property was not 
included as part of the project at the time the County’s Negative Declaration was adopted. 
Therefore, LAFCo staff has prepared the attached Addendum in accordance with CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162 and 15164 (Attachment 3). The purpose of this Addendum is to 
evaluate whether the project as currently proposed for LAFCo approval would result in any 
new or substantially greater significant effects not identified in the 2010 IS/ND for the 
original Project. 
 
The provision of water and sewer services to the Tribe’s Ocean Way Motel property, would 
not cause new significant effects nor increase the level of environmental effect to substantial 
or significant. No change has occurred and no new information has become available with 
respect to circumstances surrounding the proposed project that would cause new or 
substantially more severe significant environmental effects than were identified in the 2010 
IS/ND. Therefore, no further environmental review is required beyond the Addendum at this 
time. 
 
Attachments   

Attachment 1:  Proposed Crescent City Water Service Extension Location Map  
Attachment 2: Correspondence to BOV CSD 
Attachment 3: CEQA Addendum  
Attachment 4: Draft Resolution 16-01  
Attachment 5: Correspondence from EVR 

Packet Page 5



Martin Ranch
115-020-28

Ocean Way Motel
115-020-20

Assessment
District 1

101

H
um

bo
ld

t R
d

D
ar

by
 S

t

Be
rts

ch
 S

t

US Hwy 101

Roy Ave

R
edw

ood H
w

y

Enderts Beach R
d

Oliver Ave

Nickel Ave

Maher Ave

Peveler Ave

Quinlan Ave

Le Clair Ave

Sandmine Rd

Hodge Ave

Kelly Ave

Proposed Crescent City Water
Service Extension Date: 1/20/2016

County Service Area No. 1
County Service Area SOI
Crescent City Urban Boundary
Bertsch-Ocean View CSD
Bertsch-Ocean View SOI

 Crescent City SOI
0 1,000500 Feet

Sources: Boundaries: Del Norte County.
Path: D:\Planwest_GIS\projects\current\DelNorte_lafco\Projects\CrescentCity\Proposed_CC_water_service_extension.mxd

Crescent
City

Paci fic Ocean
Detail Area0 1 Miles

Packet Page 6



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

1 

 

February 11, 2016        DRAFT 
Michael J. Mazzei 
Attorney & Counselor at Law 
1301 Northcrest Drive, Suite B 
Crescent City, CA 95531 

Subject:  Response to Bertsch-Ocean View CSD Comments on City of Crescent City’s Application to 
Provide Water Services Outside Agency Boundaries to APN 115-020-28 and APN 115-020-20 

Mr. Mazzei, 

This is in response to the “Questions for Del Norte LAFCo” submitted with your January 25, 2016 letter. 
The questions and responses are provided below. 

1. Is the City's application complete without providing any input from the owner of the water distribution 
system through which the water service will flow? 

The City’s application to provide water service outside agency boundaries is considered complete. An 
agency referral requesting BOVCSD input was sent to the District on December 28, 2015. Written 
responses were received on January 19 and January 25 from BOVCSD representative.   
 
2. Has the City complied with Government Code Section 56133 (a) if it has not obtained the consent of 
the BOVCSD for the delivery of water through the BOVCSD water distribution system? 

The City has applied to Del Norte LAFCo in compliance with G.C. 56133 (a) which states “a city or district 
may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside its jurisdictional boundaries 
only if it first requests and receives written approval from the commission in the affected county.”  

3. Does Del Norte LAFCo have authority to approve the City's application under Government Code 
Section 56133 (b)? 

The Del Norte LAFCO Commission “may authorize a city or district provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a later change of 
organization.” Both APN 115-020-28 and APN 115-020-20 are within the City’s sphere of influence. In 
accordance with Del Norte LAFCO’s adopted Policies and Procedures (last updated in 2004) the City will 
be required to submit an annexation application or other documentation demonstrating that the 
agreement is in anticipation of a future jurisdictional change (e.g. irrevocable offer to annex). 

4. Does Del Norte LAFCo have the authority to ignore the phrase "in anticipation of a later change of 
organization" stated in Government Code Section 56133 (b)? 

It is not LAFCo’s intent to ignore "in anticipation of a later change of organization." In accordance with 
Del Norte LAFCO’s adopted Policies and Procedures (last updated in 2004) the City will be required to 
submit an annexation application or other documentation demonstrating that the agreement is in 
anticipation of a future jurisdictional change (e.g. irrevocable offer to annex). 

Packet Page 7



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

2 

5. What is the nature of the connection to the Martin Ranch property? 

The Tribe has long planned to develop a casino and resort on the Martin Ranch property and has no 
current development plans for the former Ocean Way Motel property. At this time, it is anticipated that 
the resort project will utilize 27 Single-Family-Equivalent (SFE) units. It is LAFCo staff’s understanding 
that the Tribe would receive water at a set flow rate and manage on-site water supply and distribution 
via an on-site reservoir (in ground or at grade) with the capacity of 500,000 to 700,000 gallons, a booster 
pump for potable water and fire, electrical service to operate to on-site pump stations, and an 
emergency diesel generator for power outages. 

6. Is the true purpose of the City's application to avoid the annexation process and the Local Coastal 
Plan amendment process? 

According to the application, the reason for the proposal is that the City is the only water service 
provider with both Martin Ranch and the Ocean Way Motel properties in its sphere of influence and the 
City desires to provide water service to these properties.  
 
7. Would approval of the City's application violate Government Code Section 54900? 

Application approval would not change the City boundaries; therefore it appears that GC Section 54900 
is not applicable to this proposal.  
 
8. Would approval of the City's application violate Government Code Section 61100?  
GC Section 61100 states what services a district can provide within its boundaries all of the services 
listed including “(a) Supply water for any beneficial uses, in the same manner as a municipal water 
district, formed pursuant to the Municipal Water District Law of 1911, Division 20 (commencing with 
Section 71000) of the Water Code.”  GC Section 61101 states that “A district may provide the facilities 
and services authorized by Section 61100 outside its boundaries, subject to Section 56133.”  Therefore, 
approval of the City’s application would not violate this code section.   

9. Would approval of the City's application violate Government Code Section 61101? 

GC Section 61101 states that a district may provide the facilities and services authorized by Section 
61100 outside its boundaries, subject to Section 56133. Approval of the City’s application would be in 
compliance with Section 56133 as stated in response to questions 3 and 4 above. 
 
10. Has the City violated Government Code Section 54900? 

No change in City boundary is proposed in this application, making GC Section 54900 not applicable. 
 
11. What is the average daily water demand for the proposed development? 

Estimated average daily water demand of 60,000 gallons per day was used in the 2010 Negative 
Declaration adopted by the County for LCP Amendment approval authorizing the extension of water and 
sewer service infrastructure to the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel properties (DNC-MAJ-1-10).  
 
12. What is the expected peak water demand for the proposed development? 

Packet Page 8



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

3 

Estimated peak flow (for a short duration – less than one hour) of 150 gallons per minute was used in 
the 2010 Negative Declaration adopted by the County for LCP Amendment approval authorizing the 
extension of water and sewer service infrastructure to the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel 
properties (DNC-MAJ-1-10). 
 
13. Will there be a mechanism in place to limit flows by a known amount to the proposed development? 

It is LAFCo staff’s understanding that the Tribe would receive water at a set flow rate and manage water 
supply and distribution via an on-site reservoir (in ground or at grade) with the capacity of 500,000 to 
700,000 gallons, a booster pump for potable water and fire, electrical service to operate to on-site pump 
stations, and an emergency diesel generator for power outages. 
 
14. What is the proposed mechanism for the City to provide water to the proposed development if the City 
suffers a system failure? 

The Tribe plans to manage water supply and distribution via an on-site reservoir (in ground or at grade) 
with the capacity of 500,000 to 700,000 gallons, a booster pump for potable water and fire, electrical 
service to operate to on-site pump stations, and an emergency diesel generator for power outages. 
 
15. The BOVCSD operates on a pumping system that functions for only a portion of the day. What 
mechanism is in place to provide water continuously to the proposed development other than the 
BOVCSD's water reservoir? 

See answer to 14 above.  
 
16. What is the proposed connection point to the BOVCSD's water distribution infrastructure for demand 
and fire flows? 

The connection point would be along Roy Avenue, the exact location should be requested from the City.  
 
17. What is the source of water for fire flow protection? 

The proposed on-site reservoir and pump station(s) would be used for fire protection.  
 
18. What are the projected fire flows for the proposed development? 

The projected fire flows should be requested from the City.  
 
19. Has an engineering study been prepared by a registered professional California engineer to verify 
that BOVCSD's existing water distribution infrastructure has sufficient pressures and capacity to serve 
the proposed development and all existing BOVCSD residents based on California Water Standards 
guidelines? 
The City has documented that it has the capacity available to serve the proposed project and the service 
extension would not impact the City’s ability to provide water services to existing or future development 
within the service area (LCP Amend. DNC-MAJ-1-10). In addition, according to the water study attached 
to the casino project’s Environmental Impact Statement, significant system improvements were not 
anticipated to be necessary (EIS Appendix L). 
 

Packet Page 9



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

4 

20. What portion of the BOVCSD's water distribution infrastructure capacity will be taken by the 
proposed development project? 

BOVCSD’s engineer can request necessary information from the City to determine the portion of the 
distribution infrastructure that will be used by the proposed project.   
 
If you have any questions regarding these responses, please contact LAFCo at (707) 825-9301 or 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
George Williamson AICP 
LAFCo Executive Officer 
 
   
cc:  Elizabeth Cable, LAFCo Legal Counsel (ecable@co.del-norte.ca.us)  
 Martha Rice, City Attorney (mrice@attyblack.com) 
 Bradley Downes, Elk Valley Rancheria General Counsel (bdownes@elk-valley.com) 
 
 
 

Packet Page 10



1 

CEQA INITIAL STUDY/NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

ADDENDUM  

Del Norte County Coastal Land Use Plan Amendment to Extend Public Water and Sewer to the 
Elk Valley Rancheria’s Proposed Resort and Casino  

(SCH #2010032096) 
County of Del Norte Community Development Department 

981 H Street Suite 110 
Crescent City, CA 95531 

 
Prepared by: 

Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) 
1125 16th Street, Suite 202 

Arcata, CA 95521 
 

February 2016 

INTRODUCTION 

On October 6, 2010 the Del Norte County Planning Commission adopted the Initial Study/Negative 
Declaration (IS/ND) (SCH #2010032096) for a County General Plan Coastal Element (LUP) text 
amendment. The LUP amendment allows the extension of public water and sewer beyond the Urban 
Services Boundary (USB) to serve the future site of Elk Valley Rancheria’s casino and resort, also known 
as Martin Ranch (APN 115-020-28). The Martin Ranch property is held in trust for the Elk Valley 
Rancheria (Tribe). 

Following the County’s approval, the proposed LUP amendment was submitted to the Coastal 
Commission for certification. During that time the Tribe began the process of placing an adjacent two-
acre parcel into trust, the former Ocean Way Motel (APN 115-020-20). The Coastal Commission approval 
(LCP Amend. DNC-MAJ-1-10), and the County’s amended LUP, allows for the extension of public water 
and sewer services to both the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel properties. For the LAFCo action, 
the only change to the project as evaluated in the 2010 IS/ND is the provision of public water and sewer 
services beyond the USB to the Ocean Way Motel property. The purpose of this Addendum is to 
evaluate whether the project as currently proposed would result in any new or substantially greater 
significant effects not identified in the 2010 IS/ND for the original Project.  

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FRAMEWORK  

In accordance with CEQA Guidelines 15162(c) once a project has been approved, the lead agency’s role 
in project approval is completed unless further discretionary approval on that project is required. 
Information appearing after an approval does not require reopening of that approval. If after the project 
is approved, changes to a project or its circumstances occur or new information becomes available a 
subsequent EIR or negative declaration shall only be prepared by the public agency which grants the 
next discretionary approval for the project if any of the conditions described in subdivision 15162(a) 
occurs. Otherwise a determination should be made to prepare a subsequent negative declaration, an 
addendum, or no further documentation. 

Packet Page 11



2 

With respect to the proposed project, the County has approved the LUP text amendment and LAFCo 
would grant the next discretionary approval. As such, LAFCo has prepared this addendum in compliance 
with CEQA Guidelines as described below.  

This addendum analyzes the project revisions as required under the CEQA Guidelines, Sections 15162 
and 15164. Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15164, an addendum to an adopted negative declaration 
shall be prepared if only minor technical changes or additions are necessary or none of the following 
conditions calling for the preparation of a subsequent MND have occurred: 

(1) Substantial changes in the project which require major revisions to the MND due to the involvement 
of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified 
significant effects; 

(2) Substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken which 
require major revisions to the MND due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; or 

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known 
with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time of MND adoption, shows any of the following: 

A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the ND, 
B) The project will result in impacts substantially more severe than those disclosed in the ND, 
C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible 

and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponent declines to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative, or 

D) Mitigation measures or alternatives that are considerably different from those analyzed in the ND 
would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project 
proponent declines to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.  

 
The purpose of this Addendum is to evaluate the proposed provision of public water and sewer services 
to the Ocean Way Motel property as a modification to the 2010 IS/ND and to demonstrate that the 
proposed project does not trigger any of the conditions described above.  

BACKGROUND 

The Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel properties are held in trust by the United States of America for 
the benefit of the Elk Valley Rancheria. The Tribe has long planned to develop a casino and resort on the 
Martin Ranch property and has no current development plans for the Ocean Way Motel property. A 
thorough consideration of the on-site and off-site environmental impacts related to the Tribe’s project 
was made through the Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS No. 20050396), the Final EIS (No. 
20060394), and the federal government’s Record of Decision dated January 4, 2008.  Additionally, the 
County prepared and adopted a Negative Declaration (SCH #2010032096) for the LCP text amendment 
to allow the extension of public water and sewer beyond the urban services boundary to serve the 
Tribe’s proposed casino and resort on the Martin Ranch property. 

Packet Page 12



3 

EVALUATION OF PROJECT REVISION 

The 2010 IS/ND evaluated impacts related to the extension of public water and sewer to serve the Elk 
Valley Rancheria’s proposed resort/casino on the Martin Ranch property. The proposed project would 
allow for the extension of water and sewer services to the Tribe’s adjacent Ocean Way Motel Property 
as well. The former Ocean Way Motel has been vacant for many years and the Tribe plans to remove the 
existing structures from this property, but does not have any development plans for the site at this time. 
The Ocean Way Motel property is adjacent to Martin Ranch and would be provided water and sewer 
services through the Tribe’s Martin Ranch property.  

The County’s approved text amendment language precludes growth inducement on nearby parcels by 
retaining the prohibition on connections to properties other than the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way 
Motel properties. In addition, the County and City provided information demonstrating that adequate 
reserve water and wastewater treatment services capacities exist so that the provision of such services 
to this development would not supplant or otherwise prevent service to previously authorized or 
planned-for growth in the service area.  

In preparing this Addendum, all of the potential impacts identified on the CEQA "Environmental 
Checklist Form" were considered. For all impact areas, staffs review indicates that the proposed project 
modifications are consistent with the original project, and no new information has been put forth that 
would change the environmental analysis. Since the 2010 IS/ND evaluated potential effects from 
extending water and sewer service to the Martin Ranch property, and because the Ocean Way Motel 
property would connect directly through the Martin Ranch Property no potentially significant effects 
would result from the project modification and no mitigation measures would be required. The analyses 
and the conclusions in the 2010 IS/ND remain current and valid.  

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

In summary, this analysis concludes that none of the conditions described in Section 15162 of the CEQA 
Guidelines calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR or Negative Declaration have occurred, and thus 
an Addendum to the IS/ND is appropriate to satisfy CEQA requirements for the proposed project. 

The provision of water and sewer services to the Tribe’s Ocean Way Motel property, would not cause 
new significant effects nor increase the level of environmental effect to substantial or significant. No 
change has occurred and no new information has become available with respect to circumstances 
surrounding the proposed project that would cause new or substantially more severe significant 
environmental effects than were identified in the 2010 IS/ND. Therefore, no further environmental 
review is required beyond this Addendum at this time. 

Packet Page 13



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

Resolution 16-01  1 

 
RESOLUTION 16-01 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF CRESCENT CITY  
TO PROVIDE WATER SERVICES OUTSIDE CITY BOUNDARIES TO 

APN 115-020-28 (MARTIN RANCH) & APN 115-020-20 (OCEAN WAY MOTEL) 

WHEREAS, the Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission (hereinafter referred to 
as “Commission”) is responsible for authorizing cities and special districts to provide new or 
extended services by contract or agreement outside its jurisdictional boundaries in 
accordance with California Government Code Section 56133; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission received an application from the City of Crescent City 
requesting to extend sewer services outside its jurisdictional boundaries to APNs 115-020-28 
(Martin Ranch) and 115-020-20 (Ocean Way Motel); and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission reviewed and considered the Executive Officer's report and 
recommendation; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission heard and fully considered all the evidence presented on 
the proposal at a public hearing held on January 25, 2016 and continued to February 22, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
1. The County prepared and adopted a Negative Declaration (SCH #2010032096) for the 

LCP text amendment to allow the extension of public water and sewer beyond the 
urban services boundary to serve the Martin Ranch property. LAFCo prepared an 
Addendum in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 and 15164. This analysis 
concludes that none of the conditions described in Section 15162 of the CEQA 
Guidelines calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR or Negative Declaration have 
occurred, and thus an Addendum to the IS/ND is appropriate to satisfy CEQA 
requirements for the proposed project. The records upon which these findings are 
made are located at the LAFCo offices 1125 16th Street, Suite 202 Arcata, CA 95521.  

2. The Commission has considered the factors determined to be relevant to this proposal 
including, but not limited to, application and supporting materials and as described in 
the staff report. 

3. The Commission authorizes the City of Crescent City to provide water services outside 
its jurisdictional boundary to APNs 115-020-28 (Martin Ranch), and 115-020-20 (Ocean 
Way Motel), subject to the following conditions: 

a. The property owner of the subject parcels, Elk Valley Rancheria (Tribe), must 
obtain a Coastal Grading Permit from the County of Del Norte for any off-site 
improvements related to water service extension.  

b. The Tribe must pay water connection and service charges as determined by the 
City. 

Packet Page 14



Resolution 16-01  2 

c. All LAFCo fees must be paid in full prior to the extension of service authorization 
becoming effective. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission, 
State of California, on the 22th day of February 2016, by the following vote: 

AYES:       Commissioners:  
NOES:       Commissioners:   
ABSENT:  Commissioners:  
ABSTAIN:  Commissioners:  
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Blake Inscore, Chair   
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
George Williamson, Executive Officer 

Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



Packet Page 19



Packet Page 20



Packet Page 21



Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Packet Page 24



Packet Page 25



Packet Page 26



Packet Page 27



Packet Page 28



Packet Page 29



Packet Page 30



Packet Page 31



Packet Page 32



Packet Page 33



Packet Page 34



Packet Page 35



REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

January 25, 2016 4:00 pm 
 

Members present: Chairman Blake Inscore, Martha McClure, Kathryn Murray 
 
Members absent: Sparky Countess, Roger Gitlin, Gerry Hemmingsen 
 
Others present:  Executive Officer George Williamson, County Counsel Elizabeth 
Cable, and Nicole Burshem, PS Business Services, Darren Short, Steve Paynter, 
Martha Rice, Michael Mazzei 

 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Chair Inscore called the meeting to order at 4:25 p.m. 

Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair for 2016 
 
Discussion was held in regards to the appointment of Chair and Vice 
Chair for 2016. Chairman Inscore asked for a consensus to move this to 
next regular meeting. It was consensus of the board to continue this 
matter at the next regular meeting. 
 

2. Public Hearings  

A. Crescent City Water Service Extension to the Martin Ranch (APN 115-
020-28) and Ocean Way Motel (APN 115-020-20) Properties 
(ATTACHMENT 2A) 
 
Discussion was held in regards to the Crescent City Water Service 
Extension to the Martin Ranch and Ocean Way Motel Properties. Mr. 
Williamson commented this is a discretionary action. The City of 
Crescent City submitted an application to extend water services. The 
analysis was completed, we received a memorandum from the Tribe, 
and the correspondence has been presented to the Board today. Mr. 
Williamson noted the environmental review is in the staff report. The 
original proposal was for an annexation, but the Coastal Commission 
advised we don’t consider an annexation due to it being a boundary 
change. Mr. Williamson recommended opening public hearing and 
have a discussion. Mr. Williamson noted the Rancheria does not 
support a continuance and wants to see some action taken. 
Commissioner Murray asked if we received the letter from the 
Rancheria last week. Mr. Williamson commented he distributed 
another letter from EVR at this meeting. Chair Inscore opened up the 
public hearing. Martha Rice stated she is here to answer any questions. 
Ms. Rice commented the City is in full support of the application and 

Packet Page 36



doesn’t think a continuance is needed. Ms. Rice noted all the 
arguments are presented in the packet and we are here today to 
approve the application for the extension of water services. Michael 
Mazzei presented the board with a letter and a small version of a map. 
Mr. Mazzei pointed out to the board the infrastructure of the pipes is 
owned and is the responsibility of the Bertch-Ocean View Community 
Services District (BOVCSD). The City of Crescent City’s role and access 
to the water distribution system is through a contract for basic 
maintenance and billing services. Mr. Mazzei commented under 
Government Code Section 56133(a) allows a City or District to provide 
new or extended services by contract or agreement outside its 
jurisdictional boundaries. In the application there was only agreement 
with the City and the Rancheria. Mr. Mazzei presented a list of 
questions the BOVCSD wants answers to. Mr. Mazzei stated there has 
been discussion with the Rancheria and the concept of water 
wheeling was brought up in 2008. The District felt the established 
orderly process of annexation was appropriate. Mr. Mazzei reported 
over the past eight years the City has brought this concept forward 
and the BOVCSD has repeatedly said they were not interested. The  
BOVCSD does not feel LAFCO has the authority to approve something 
like this. Mr. Mazzei noted BOVCSD would like the Rancheria to go 
through an annexation process. Mr. Mazzei commented the BOVCSD 
would like to see what the project will look like. Commissioner McClure 
asked what is the capacity of the 12 inch pipe. Mr. Paynter 
commented it is an 8-12 inch line. Commissioner McClure asked if the 
improvements were paid for by public funds. Mr. Mazzei commented 
they aren’t outside grant assistance. Commissioner McClure asked if 
they are annexed into the City system; is it possible to join the City by 
joining through the Disticts lines. Mr. Mazzei stated that is part of the 
problem; the District doesn’t know what the information is. Chairman 
Inscore stated if the BOVCSD couldn’t identify their capacity with the 
information; could the BOVCSD make a decision anyways. Mr. Paynter 
commented the information of the new system would be made up 
into a model to help evaluate the impact of the system. Commissioner 
McClure asked what the fees are. Mr. Mazzei commented the District 
was not interested in the fee, but in the management of the system. 
Commissioner McClure asked if the Rancheria has been in 
communication with the District in regards to the changes. Mr. Mazzei 
commented the Rancheria was engaging the City without the Districts 
input. Chairman Inscore commented Michael Young provided the 
District with an opinion about the water system and specifically 
addressed wheeling as an option. Mr. Mazzei commented he was 
working with the City at the time. Mr. Mazzei read from one of the 
letters presented in the packet. Commissioner McClure asked if a 

Packet Page 37



project could be approved with special conditions. Mr. Mazzei 
commented there could be additional conditions and negotiations. 
Ms. Rice commented it is her understanding the financial conditions 
was not acceptable to the Tribe. Ms. Rice noted Martin Ranch has 
been receiving water services since before the 80’s. What this 
application allows is to serve a larger area, but continue service. Ms. 
Rice stated the Rancheria would be putting in their pumps to make 
sure the water is maintained. Ms. Rice asked why the District wasn’t as 
interested in this project over the past eight years. Commissioner 
Murray asked for the historical knowledge between the City and 
Ocean view. Ms. Rice commented Mr. Black has been working on this 
agreement for four years and received a correspondence the 
BOVCSD wasn’t interested in the wheeling agreement. Commissioner 
McClure asked why the Rancheria couldn’t take their pumps and 
place them. Ms. Rice commented it was an issue with the increase in 
the amount of water. Commissioner McClure asked if there was a 
penalty of increasing or decreasing. Ms. Rice stated she was not aware 
of one. Mr. Mazzei commented the District was not aware of the water 
service and were only made aware through the wheeling negotiation. 
Mr. Mazzei stated the District wants to be able to manage our system. 
Commissioner Murray stated she was aware of the negotiations made 
and is a little insulted when Mr. Mazzei keeps saying the City owns the 
water. The City doesn’t own the water, but owns the water service and 
if we didn’t send the water to Bertch-Oceanview you wouldn’t have it. 
This is a very complex situation and this whole thing has been 
embedded through the agencies. Mr. Mazzei gave a timeline history of 
the project. Chairman Inscore commented the District knew the 
direction this agreement was going and there was time for a case to 
be established. Mr. Mazzei commented the application is bizarre. 
Chairman Inscore commented the Board has been aware of the 
concept and two BOVCSD District Board members came to speak with 
him. Chairman Inscore asked if annexation would not change impact 
to the system itself; would there be any material difference to the 
system itself. Mr. Paynter commented he hasn’t done the study yet, so 
he does not know the answer at this time. Chairman Inscore asked in 
regards to the 2010-2011-structure fee. Mr. Mazzei noted it was for 
connection fees. Chairman Inscore noted a model was made than. 
Mr. Paynter stated the District doesn’t know the size of the 
development. Commissioner McClure commented she feels this will 
end up a wheeling agreement. The District will still have the authority to 
make an agreement and have it remain viable. Commissioner 
McClure commented she is in support of this argument presented 
today. Commissioner Murray asked if the City passed an ordinance to 
make an agreement with the Tribe at one of the City’s meetings; was 

Packet Page 38



there notice posted in the paper. Ms. Rice commented she has not 
seen them. Chairman Inscore asked Mr. Williamson if the water 
connection and service changes limit any services related only to the 
City. Mr. Williamson commented it would not be exclusive it requires 
transaction between the two entities. Chairman Inscore asked if there 
is anything that precludes that agreement. Chairman Inscore 
commented this resolution is solely for this action related to the City 
services extension not intended to override their final say. Mr. Mazzei 
commented we would appreciate additional time and there are some 
conditions that could be in place to pass legal muster. Chairman 
Inscore asked if Mr. Williamson had a final thought. Mr. Williamson 
commented he needs an official motion to continue this. 
Commissioner McClure asked would it be to the advantage to 
continue this. Mr. Williamson stated he did not realize the full extent of 
the time here and all the issues. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner McClure, seconded by Commissioner 
Murray, and unanimously carried on a polled vote, the commission 
approved the continuance of the matter until the next regular 
scheduled meeting on February 22, 2016. 

 
3. Regular Business 

A. Approval of November 30, 2015 Draft Minutes (ATTACHMENT 3A) 

On a motion by Commissioner Murray, seconded by Commissioner 
McClure, and unanimously carried, the commission approved the 
minutes from November 30, 2015, as presented. 

B. 2016 Meeting Dates (ATTACHMENT 3B) 

Discussion was held in regards to the 2016 meeting dates. 

C. Budget Transfer Request (ATTACHMENT 3C) 

Discussion was held in regards to the budget transfer request. Mr. 
Williamson commented the matter has been resolved and 
recommends a refund to the Rancheria for $956.00. 

On a motion by Commissioner Murray, seconded by Commissioner 
McClure, and unanimously carried on a polled vote, the commission 
approved and adopted the Budget Transfer Request to the Rancheria 
in the amount of $956.00.  

 
4. Inquiries, Correspondence, Application Status and Referrals 

A. Staff - The Executive Officer will provide a report of current projects, 
issues of interest, and pending legislation. 

Packet Page 39



- Gasquet CSD MSR & SOI In progress- Mr. Williamson commented 
Gasquet is making good progress. There has been Good 
cooperation from CSD and will be conducting a hearing. 

- Klamath FPD MSR & SOI In progress- Mr. Williamson commented 
this is to keep you updated, but we are working and making a lot of 
effort towards the recruit project. Mr. Williamson commented we 
paid to have a facilitator come and develop approved material for 
training the new recruits. Mr. Williamson stated there was a indicator 
that we would get some recruitment and interest. Mr. Williamson 
noted they were hoping the Tribe would support training through 
their staff. Mr. Williamson reported the project was unsuccessful. He 
is going to bring the MSR back to the commission in March and one 
of the options is the zero sphere of influence. Commissioner Murray 
asked if we were going to partner with CALFIRE. Mr. Williamson 
commented we can do that, but not through this district. One-way 
to approach this is to bring the MSR back with a zero sphere and 
immediately look at options of the Amador project. Commissioner 
Murray asked if the Sheriff or that district supervisor spoke with them. 
Mr. Williamson commented he has kept them in the loop and the 
Sheriff has not a lot of information about what is going on there. 
Commissioner McClure suggested having emergency training 
information. Chairman Inscore commented it looked like we had 
some traction and now we have nothing. Chairman Inscore 
commented he is disappointed there isn’t a lot of participation with 
everybody. 

- New Del Norte LAFCo Website & Staff Emails (ATTACHMENT 4A)- 
Mr. Williamson commented this commission has been available to 
take advantage to do free posting on CAL-LAFCO website and 
staff emails. We have taken that as an opportunity to build your 
own independent websites. We will do a transition in email.  

B.  Commission - On their own initiative, Commission members may make 
brief announcements or reports on their own activities. They may ask 
questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or request a business 
matter for a future agenda per Government Code Section 54954.2 (a). 

 The following Commissioner(s) reported on: None 

D. Public - Public comment on items of interest within LAFCo subject 
matter jurisdiction, and not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  No 
action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. 

The following person addressed the Commission: Darrin asked in 
regards to liability towards a Klamath Fire. Mr. Williamson commented 
someone would have to litigate and he has been working diligently 

Packet Page 40



with this. Mr. Williamson noted he doesn’t expect any liability to get this 
done. 

4. Adjournment 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, the Vice-
Chairman adjourned the meeting at 4:00 p.m. until the next regularly 
scheduled meeting on February 22, 2016. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nicole L. Burshem, Recording 
Secretary 
 
 

Packet Page 41



DEL NORTE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
execofficer@delnorte.lafco.ca.gov 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3B 

 

MEETING DATE: February 22, 2016  

TO:   Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer  

SUBJECT: Del Norte LAFCo Policy and Procedures Update  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION 

Del Norte LAFCo Policies & Procedures were last updated in 2004. As such, the entire 
document should be reviewed up updated to reflect current statutory standards and 
processes. There are also references to fees and charge rates that require updating.    
The Commission could form a Committee to work with staff to update the Policies and 
Procedures, or staff could bring proposed updates back to the entire Commission.  
 
 

Packet Page 42


	2A-5 EVR Letter to LAFCo.pdf
	EVR Letter to LAFCO re BOVCSD & 20 questions_2-15-16.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20

	EVR Letter to LAFCO re BOVCSD & 20 questions_signature page 2-15-16
	Page 1





